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Passed by Shri Kumar Santosh, Commissioner (Appeals), Rajkot 
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Arising out of above mentioned 010 issued by Additional/JointlDeputylAssistant Commissioner, Central Excise I Service Tax, 

Rajkot I Jamnagar I Gandhidham 

El 3* & ',4Ilcii T °il'I-I 'r tlT /Name&Address of the Appellants & Respondent :- 

1. M/s. Benito Ceramics P. Ltd., Survey No. 8381P-2, National Highway 8-A Lakhdhirpur Road Behind 
Soriso Ceramic , Morbi -363 642 

2. Shri Kamlesh D. Koringa, Director, Mis. Benito Ceramics P. Ltd., 

3. Shri Jayendra C. Kalariya, Prop. M/s. Radhey Marketing, Morbi 

4. Shri Bhaveshbhai R. Rankja, Partner M/s. R.K. Enterprise, Morbi 

T 3T1r(M4) mt1r .  silt -.1IId dl' '1c1 1i1ftrf I ti1tur tNt 31tfrfr c,ti 1'ecll 
Any person aggrieved by this Order-in-Appeal may file an appeal to the appropriate authority in the following way. 

iiljii nr ,.-çle j,-qi V Qi'  31tfltto .l4IIh°I 3ttft, c'it 331I11tOtT 1944 t SITU 35B 
3Tttf V 1i 3t1ET1R1r, 1994 t urn 86 i 3fpp'j5 (o.,j+T t rn 1 

Appeal to Customs, Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal under Section 35B of CEA, 1944 I Under Section 86 of the 
Finance Act, 1994 an appeal lies to:- 

(i) oT1.ui -ei,t,.i * 1ur UII oji  4Dir trr, IT'tzr .j,'ec.i V ot  3lt(lPT 'srmT1I1ur r 1t tft, c 
2, 3TTT. *. qr, a 1?,ll, ff r .,iiTl i1u I! 

The special bench of Customs, Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal of West Block No. 2, R.K. Puram, New Delhi in all 
matters relating to classification and valuation. 

(ii) ,q'r,i tltt 1(a) aiiv IV 31tfl!f r 3ttTT t) lftff 3T4( llU_ti, 'ik jr'OC, V 1ol'e( 3FfltPT izn1IuT 

(l) t 'if lor 4l1i, , c,Iclle rpr, 3t 31TTm oi,uei,- Ieoott t t o1l 1t(ti I! 

To the West regional bench of Customs, Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT) at, 2nd  Floor, Bhaumali Bhawan, 
Asarwa Ahmedabad-380016 in case of appeals other than as mentioned in para- 1(a) above 

(iii) i niIur r r 31tfl i+ i 1v Pr  tr_(3tM) 11J1IOc, 2001. 1iJi 6 3TT0'l 1S/Tft 1 
EA-3 fl lei iT ti(o I V T 5c'41C, U t TT ,il.'I t 1PT 

31'lT iiii spiT ,,ii).jr, spy 5  S1T TT 3p r, 5 STTt spy art 50 iTriT spy  iT 3J5mT 50 TTR 'UTV 3I1 P/F 5Pr 1,000!- 

sp, 5,000!-  3T5TeT 10,000/- U1 sp 1a/rfpr T trF T 1elt l 1SfIftPr TP r TiTPI1iT. ie1ld 31tftf.ftar 
I114,I t ItTT t I1ll4' t+t PS1P ft aii arrf ).1i c i'c oitt Ii nwr ei(o I 

1IId i4 t èlIc1I.1, *t 3 Rir siT n1u rr eeIci 3141eT1iT .-eieII14'VI *r artist 1rnt I spsiar 3nt!r ( 31i&) 
1iv 3irsr-'Tir t arTy 500!- spy  r 1ltflftpr ti atari 4't.lI 'n I! 

The appeal to the Appellate Tribunal shall be filed in quadruplicate in form EA-3 I as prescribed under Rule 6 of Central 
Excise (Appeal) Rules, 2001 and shall be accompanied against one which at least should be accompanied by a fee of Rs. 
1,000/- Rs.5000/-, Rs.10,000/- where amount of duty demand/interesl/penaltylrefund is upto 5 Lac., 5 Lac to 50 Lac and 
above 50 Lac respectively in the form of crossed bank draft in favour of Asst. Registrar of branch of any nominated public 
sector bank of the place where the bench of any nominated public sector bank of the place where the bench of the Tribunal 
is situated. Application made for grant of stay shall be accompanied by a fee of Rs. 500!-. 

3rtfMar .-wii .t,uI UstaT 3T'1Pr, (,-,i 3t1tTharsT, 1994 t SITU 86(1) 3iTP1TT oi' 1to1ole11, 1994, * ¶IJt 9(1) T dci 

ST-S * anT Trltaft * arT ViT .j ,  is fy f  3PftPT *r siaft j  t1 anis *  

(3iT* t1 artI9Tpr t oi1u) 311T f.1/ * P isfil aiw F i//ar ,aan F spop uii ian 

.,tei'.ii, spy 5 Ty 511 3ii islt, 5 UT spy sit 50 atnT spy 3rarnrt 50 crier spy 3tfI151c tft wary: 1,000/- *, 5,000/- 

sp* 3r5rer 10,000!-  yr 1ttMy atari nist r ri  is11 1iafiftpr ijisi isi IdI.1, iii1J,i 3t4Tll5t .-oie((iq,(uI r arTIST 

1l.1'' (1l-cl( 'k"  a'FT C,cll(l ISTF etifi 451 5I9C dRl 1it atisiT 4II I 1I)d 5IWC 5111 1TITPl1Sr, 

ty r sst artier * i ii(  atr *r 3rtMly .-iitui r arrnr laipr I spy atttr ( 3tth) 1i  3tt*flr- c 

500!- 11V 5111 ftjif IT atTIT 'fr(il fl7TT Il 

The appeal under sub Section (1) of Section 86 of the Finance Act, 1994, to the Appellate Tribunal Shall be filed in 
quadruplicate in Form 5.1.5 as prescribed under Rule 9(1) of the Service Tax Rules. 1994. and Shall be accompanied by a 
copy of the order appealed against (one of which shall be certified copy) and should be accompanied by a fees of Rs. 
1000/- where the amount of service tax & interest demanded & penalty levied of Rs. 5 Lakhs or less, Rs.50001- where the 
amount of service tax & interest demanded & penalty levied is more than five lakhs but not exceeding Rs. Fifty Lakhs, 
Rs.10.000I- where the amount of service tax & interest demanded & penalty levied is more than fifty Lakhs rupees, in the 
form of crossed bank draft in favour of the Assistant Registrar of the bench of nominated Public Sector Bank of the place 
where the bench of Tribunal is situated. I Application made for grant of stay shall be accompanied by a fee of Rs.5001-. 

(A)  

(B)  



(C) 

(i) 

(v) 

(i) i 3t1t11T, 1994 r tm 86 r rrm3# (2) (2A) i apr t r smt 3t4ter, or iar?l, 1994, re 9(2) eg 

9(2A) df ci ST.-7 t 3T1 t i#' R1t 3tPT, li 3cli. 312fdT 3tq (3txfl), .-(k -qic. 

 itftr 3trttr r 1Rt( c'ii w (3st i ',ir)lci 'Isft nhrt) 31tT 39 çnw *iFL14 3i1Tr 31'-TT 'rri-ci, ezltr 

 trir/ oii, t 31tMlT  fr 31T5r 6 r )r * 1* 30th *r 91 3ft emr t     I I 

The appeal under sub section (2) and (2A) of the section 86 the Finance Act 1994, shall be filed in For ST.7 as prescribed 

under Rule 9 (2) & 9(2A) of the Service Tax Rules, 1994 and shall be accompanied by a copy of order of Commissioner 

Central Excise or Commissioner, Central Excise (Appeals) (one of which shall be a certified copy) and copy of the order 

passed by the Commissioner authorizing the Assistant Commissioner or Deputy Commissioner of Central Excise! Service Tax 

to file the appeal before the Appellate Tribunal. 

(ii) lleii t, eRr  nrr v eie  3ttft1tT sn1ur (.r-~) gj 3tfifr i  -ie .i'.iic hrr 31ZIR 1944 f 
y 35qr 3i, fr r ¶flq 311hT, 1994 T 3m 83 * 3it TT 3ft r 4 , r 3iTthi * M1 30thRT 

TI1I1UT * 3f4tyr q,(c1 i1J11 5c'iI hrFi/cir wt * 10 1hri (10%), nur ,,cir 1oiI?,ci , lT i' ii, Td 8,cici ,,iiir 

1arl?ci , T Icfl.1 lI lTh, ef'fr tjT * 3rirT rni f eir  3Ttt TI1T   tlV 3t1r 

*T 3c"1I 0t aI * .3fmr ti v li-i hIIIci 

(i)  

(ii) rr r f 4 srr 'ift 

(iii) TT1 liIcte * ¶1iei 6 * 33P11T k 

- ei 1* r tim * gTetT1  (hT. 2) 3t1Ifltm1r 2014 * 311 1*f 31MPr tn)1.r'i  * m frpithsr 

erm 3tIf 0t 3Trtyr t mi f c'l'l I! 

For an appeal to be filed before the CESTAT, under Section 35F of the Central Excise Act, 1944 which is also made 

applicable to Service Tax under Section 83 of the Finance Act, 1994, an appeal against this order shall lie before the Tribunal 

on payment of 10% of the duty demanded where duty or duty and penalty are in dispute, or penalty, where penalty alone is in 

dispute, provided the amount of pre-deposit payable would be subject to a ceiling of Rs. 10 Crores, 

Under Central Excise and Service Tax, Duty Demanded shall include 

(i) amount determined under Section 11 D; 

(ii) amount of erroneous Cenvat Credit taken; 

(iii) amount payable under Rule 6 of the Cenvat Credit Rules 

- provided further that the provisions of this Section shalt not apply to the stay application and appeals pending before 

any appellate authority prior to the commencement of the Finance (No.2) Act, 2014. 

1hRT  et reror 3Wklt: 

RevIsion applicatIon to Government of IndIa: 
1T 3lTthr f 5thtI rITI'r,I i)lId *Mr4'I t, Wlq jcq, h4 31I1fT, 1994 t tim 35EE * cTst qr * etsr 3111T 
iIcr, im jq'j, Ilewr 3fl 3, ) i.*-a 1iiir, it)t elle1, .hei lt1 ITeST, iiec. st$ 1-c'fl-110OO1, * 

l.cii ,,irti vjifvl / 

A revision application lies to the Under Secretary, to the Government of India, Revision Application Unit, Ministry of Finance, 

Department of Revenue, 4th Floor, Jeevan Deep Building, Parliament Street, New Delhi-110001, under Section 35EE of the 
CEA 1944 in respect of the following case, governed by first proviso to sub-section (1) of Section-35B ibid: 

i1 TI * fft .iqciii * iiic  *, t e,iiij ¶,*11 ircr t f'i1  .eictai.'* ae1T * tiiic r tu.r r f*ift 3wr 'iten. SIT 

f I  ew hIT ç$) 316ff 'e'IJ1.I * iI1, SIT Ifl 3{41T STE 31611W ' 311ff * H-°I * cji, ffl q,gj 

Ift 316ff * 311ff * cie1oi * eiIJic  *1/ 

In case of any loss of goods, where the loss occurs in transit from a factory to a warehouse or to another factory or from one 
warehouse to another during the course of processing of the goods in a warehouse or in storage whether in a factory or in a 

warehouse 

3111W * ei  ftift sir th 0t f1ci tiw * fju 'rsmr w SIrfE q 31ff 4 *1ST  1t * tS (c) * 
Jiioil k fr 31r111 * ei Ifl TT sir   r sr4f i I 

In case of rebate of duty of excise on goods exported to any country or territory outside India of on excisable material used in 
the manufacture of the goods which are exported to any country or territory outside India. 

ii1 r'iIC I 1T3TTTl1ST i,C I1T 3111W * 1ifT, ici lT 31,?1ST t 31131 1c{ 1*511 TSIT I I 

In case of goods exported outside India export to Nepal or Bhutan, without payment of duty. 

T11f1*r j-qIc * jc"iici * im * 1* fr c c 311*th1W e4,  IIi musift * c1ci 311T r 4 3 

311hT3W(3tlST*c,eir )cc13t1l1sT31 (3r. 2), 1998 rstm 109 *err )qçi f4cirs 3151511 leThe1I11311 

 w 

Credit of any duty allowed to be utilized towards payment of excise duty on final products under the provisions of this Act or 
the Rules made there under such order is passed by the Commissioner (Appeals) on or after, the date appointed under Sec. 

109 of the Finance (No.2) Act, 1998. 

ql 31T111T t   tFt l(4I EA-8 , 11fr f *lST rj IjTeE (31lST) IiIcIQI, 2001, * 1ei 9 *3011131 1)C , 
1r 311thT * hiot * 3 311 * 311111ff t 51Mt 'uIe I i'.rci 3ftt61T * IITST 51l 3lrkhr 3ltfttr 3lrthr t 1dlsit *iT t 

v311Irl 111ff *5l'ff c4K hjTeT 3t1thsmr, 1944 E ttlTr 35-EE * cicci Itñfr ITe t 3131ISIff * tiee * 1f tff  TR-6 r tl 
1eIj t 3llsft ciuIel I 

The above application shall be made in duplicate in Form No. EA-8 as specified under Rule, 9 of Central Excise (Appeals) 

Rules, 2001 within 3 months from the date on which the order sought to be appealed against is communicated and shalt be 
accompanied by two copies each of the 010 and Order-In-Appeal, It should also be accompanied by a copy of TR-6 Chaltan 

evidencing payment of prescribed fee as prescribed under Section 35-EE of CEA, 1944, under Major Head of Account. 

iur tirim * im I-4ci 11*?1TE 101111 T 313115151t r .airll ijIv I
__ 

,,1cI cici oi rcrt sir .s  w t ft 'Tt 200/- 111T 3sirnir li T1v 3ftT silt *IeI.1 ft 
hffk 1000 -/ wr STJITeST Ier litr I 
The revision app?kation shall be accompanied by a fee of Rs. 200/- where the amount involved in Rupees One Lac or less 

and Rs. 1000/- where the amount involved is more than Rupees One Lac. 

(D) sr1 r 3cr1r 31,3W 31*hfr STE oirar sjr 311thr * Iv STr smnsr,  sr )  sosti 11III r itsr * 
rt far i't nls * * I' srsuts4 311'ftftsr eiI1ui r t 31lST sir tii 311fl65r Iiu ,1icii I / 

In case, if the order covers various numbers of order- in Original, fee for each 0.1.0. should be paid in the aforesaid manner, 

not withstanding the fact that the one appeal to the Appellant Tribunal or the one application to the Central Govt. As the case 
may be. is filled to avoid scriptona work if excising Rs. 1 Iakh fee of Rs. 100/- for each. 

51511 hl'IFlci .-ulcle Ic 311h151ST, 1975, * 31-1 * 3mr511T 333W 311t1T 114 T511 3tlttr t ti1 11W fl51lft1E 6.50 
.-i.ue 101111 Ifc Truir lii uiIei / 
One copy of application or 0.1.0. as the case may be. and the order of the adjudicating authority shall bear a court fee stamp 
of Rs. 6.50 as prescribed under Schedule-I in terms of the Court Fee Act,1975, as amended. 

IfisIr h1h, '-k 5c4I 101ST 14 Dr4,{ 31'ftEIPE .-lEeI11w°I (ST1s 11i)) I1eiiec'fl, 1982   im 313W Wl51ltT1r eiijieif 11ff 
 1111* i0t 11 311W 3 tsllff 3flSTfkiT Ir 311111 I / 

Attention is also invited to the rules covering these and other related matters contained in the Customs, Excise and Service 
Appellate Tribunal (Procedure) Rules. 1982. 

31W 31tflT1'IS1 ',ri1lwt 11t 3141W 6T16r 4'1 * 111llci cll'411,, I93W 311W .idJ1 111111113* * fsi, 3I4IE01It 1wsflsr eerc 
www.cbec.gov.in  3* ks *w' I / 

For the elaborate, detailed and latest provisions relating to filing of appeal to the higher appellate authority, the appellant may 
refer to the Departmental website www.cbec.gov.in  
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:: ORDERs- IN APPEAL:: 

The appeals detailed below have been filed by the 

Appellants (herein after referred to as "Appellant No.1 to Appellant 

No.4) against. Order-in-Original No. 53/ ADC/ RKC/ 2016-17 dated 

31.03.2017 (hereinafter referred to as 'the impugned order') passed 

by the Additional Commissioner, Central Excise & Service Tax, Rajkot 

(hereinafter referred to as 'the lower adjudicating authority'):- 

Sr 
No. 

Appeal No. Appellant No. Name of the Appellant 

1 V2/253/RAJ/ 
2017 

Appellant 
No.1 

M/s. Benito Ceramics P. Ltd, 
Survey No. 8381P-2, 

8-A, National Highway, 
Lakhdhirpur Road, 
AT- GHUNTU 
MORBI- 363642 

2 V2/254/RAJ/ 
2017 

Appellant 
No.2 

Shri Kamlesh D Koringa, 
Director of Appellant No.1 

3 V2/255/RAJ/ 
2017 

Appellant 
No.3 

Shri Jayendra Chandulal 
Kalariya, 
Proprietor, 
M/s Radhey Marketing 
Shakti Champber-1, 
Opp. Adarsh Hotel, 
8-1 National Highway, Morbi. 

4 V2/256/RAJ/ 
2017 

Appellant 
No.4 

Shri Bhaveshbhai R. Rankja, 
Partner 
M/s. R. K. Enterprise, 
Parshwanath Chamber, 
8-A, National Highway, 
Morbi. 

2. Brief facts of the case are that search was carried out by 

the Officers of Rajkot Central Excise Commissionerate under 

Panchnama Proceedings dated 19/20-08-2015 and several 

incriminating documents including "Order Status" documents, Dispatch 

Page 3 of49 
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slips, production register, etc. were recroded and shortage of finished 

goods were recorded under Panchnama Proceedings. Statements of 

Appellant No.2 and buyers of their finished goods were recorded, 

which revealed that Appellant No.1 was engaged in clandestine 

manufacture and removal of "Wall Tiles" in the guise of "ORDER 

STATUS" forms. Show Cause Notice dated 30.09.2016 was issued to 

Appellant No.1 demanding Central Excise duty of Rs.1,75,83,016/-

under Section hA and interest Section 11AA of the Central Excise 

Act, 1944 (hereinafter referred to as "the Act") and to Appellant No.2, 

Appellant No.3 and Appellant No.4 proposing imposition of Penalty 

under Rule 26 of Central Excise Rules, 2002 (hereinafter referred to as 

"the Rules"). The SON was adjudicated by the lower adjudicating 

authority vide impugned order confirming demand of Rs. 1,75,83,016/-

under Section hA of the Act along with interest under Section 11 of 

the Act,, imposing penalty of Rs.1,75,83,016/- upon Appellant No.1 

under Section 1 1AC of the Act read with Rule 25 of the Rules, 

imposed penalty of Rs.44,00,000/- upon Appellant No.2, Rs.1,50,000/-

upon Appellant No.3 and Rs.66,000/- upon Appellant No.4 under 

Rule 26 of the Rules and appropriated Rs.80,00,000/- deposited by 

Appellant No.1 against duty confirmed above. 

3. Being aggrieved with the impugned order, the Appellants 

preferred present appeals on the following grounds:- 

Appellant No.1  

(I) Demand confirmed in the impugned order and affirmation 

of all allegations are merely based on alleged confessions recorded in 

statements of its director, employees and two customers read with 

documents seized during search on 19/20.08.2015. Appellant had 

requested for cross examination of these persons whose statements 

were relied upon in the case. It had also requested to permit cross 

Page 4 of 49 
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examination of two panch witnesses as it was noticed that both of 

them were in fact drivers of two vehicles brought by the officers at the 

time of search of appellant's premises, hence not independent 

witnesses. Adjudicating authority has not allowed their request of cross 

examination even though request was supported by provisions of 

Section 9D of the Act and Section 30 of the Evidence Act and judicial 

citations. 

(ii) Appellant pointed out that during the search operation 

immediately on entering into the premises, the officers had directed to 

close all CCTVs of the unit at the time of search, Cell phones of the 

Directors and the employees were forced to confess clandestine 

manufacture and clearances on the basis of Order Status forms; that 

physical stock taking of the finished goods was not done and shortage 

of 35,010 boxes of wall tiles of premium grade were considered and 

shortage of goods has been alleged without undertaking physical 

verification of the stock. 

(iii) Panchas were called after completion of search and were 

directed to put their signatures on said documents; that both Panchas 

were in fact drivers of two vehicles brought by the officers and not 

panch witnesses from the local area; that during the course of search 

operation, both these witnesses (drivers) were either sitting in the 

vehicles brought by the team of officers or were roaming in the 

premises of appellant; that signature of both witnesses in 5 pages and 

signature of one witness in two pages were missing; that Panchas 

were illiterate and it is not possible to believe that what has been 

recorded in the panchnarna was witnessed by said witnesses and is 

recorded as per their version, though mentioned in the Panchnama; 

that adjudicating authority has failed to judge that entire search 

operation was vitiated and consequently no adverse inference can be 

drawn from said panchnama unless its truthfulness was proved in 

Page 5 of 49 
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cross examination of panch witnesses. 

(iv) Statements dated on 19.08.2015 were recorded before completion 

of search on 20.08.2015 and no statement giver was allowed to read 

contents typed in their statements but were forced to sign it; that 

Appellant No.2 was unlawfully coerced to admit evasion of duty and to 

present post dated cheques towards central excise duty alleged to 

have been evaded by appellant and was forced to put his signature on 

statements of the employees without reading the same. Shri 

Kamleshbhai D. Koringa, and Bharat B. Rajkotiya, Directors in the 

Affidavits dated 28.08.2015 filed by them have affirmed these facts; 

that Shri Hardik K. Jagodara, Billing clerk, Shri Jayesh D. Odakiya, 

Loading Supervisor and Shri Amrish N. Marvaniya, Marketing Manager 

had also stated in their respective Affidavits dated 09.07.2016 that 

they were tortured and forced by the officers to sign statements 

without allowing to read the same; that copies of the said Affidavits 

were submitted along with reply to the notice. 

(v) Appellant No.2 was called for and attended Central Excise office 

on 27.08.2015 who was accompanied by other Director, Shri 

Bharatbhai Rajkoitya, and they were verbally directed to admit the 

offence and deposit post dated cheques in absence of which they 

would be arrested; that succumbing to such undue and illegal 

pressure, they had handed over 20 post dated cheques of collective 

sum of Rs.93,00,000/- to the officers on 27.08.2015; that since the 

said cheques were not voluntarily tendered by appellant or its Director 

they had not issued any forwarding letter and these facts were 

affirmed in Affidavits filed by Appellant No.2 and Shri Bharat B 

Rajkoitya, Director; that Appellant No.2 and Shri Bharabhai Rajkotiya, 

accompanied directors were directed to put his dated signature on pre-

typed statements dated 27.08.2015 after obtaining the statement; that 

this facts can be verified that name of Shri Bharatbahi was typed even 

Page 6 of 49 
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before the signing of Appellant No.2.; that first two statements of 

Appellant No2. were typed in Gujarati and subsequent statement were 

deliberately recorded in English when he was unaware of the contents 

typed in English as he is graduated in Gujarati; that it has been 

erroneously recorded in the statement dated 19.11.2015 that Shri 

Navinchandra B. Koringa, who had accompanied Shri Kamleshbhai, 

had explained contents of the statement in Gujarati. Similarly, it has 

been erroneously recorded in his statements dated 25.04.2016 and 

24. 05.2016 that contents of the statements were explained in Gujarati 

to Shri Kamleshbhai by Shri Pankaj M. Kavar. In fact, these persons 

were also not allowed to read the said statements or its enclosures but 

were directed to copy few lines from draft copy prepared by the 

officers, as they had accompanied him to central excise office; that act 

of payments by Appellant was only due to threat of arrest looming over 

the directors still the notice was issued on 30.09.2016 

(vi) Statements dated 30.11.2015 of two small Commission Agents 

engaged in trading of ceramic tiles viz. Shri Bhavesh R. Rankja — 

Proprietor of M/s. R.K. Enterprise, Morbi and Shri Jaynedrabhai C. 

Kalariya — Proprietor of M/s. Radhey Marketing, Morbi reveal that both 

have given verbatim the same answers except change in their 

personal details and figures typed in last answer and they were 

neither allowed to read the said statements nor were shown physical 

copy of any of the OS forms referred in their statements and hence 

statements of both these customers of appellant are dubious and 

cannot be relied upon to sustain allegation of huge evasion of duty 

especially where no statements of any other customers out of 300 

customers. 

(vii) Letter dated 09.05.2016 was got printed by the officers in the 

office by obtaining blank letter head from the directors; that no copies 

of Order Status Forms and earlier statements were available with the 

Page 7 of49 
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Appellant and it was not possible for Appellant to give such outright 

admission that too with calculation of Central Excise duty payable by it 

with exact number of boxes, differential abated value and Central 

Excise Duty; that investigation has not prepared any annexure to the 

show cause notice for computing duty of Rs.1,75,83,016/- on 

16,57,218 Boxes valued at Rs.14,14,70,378/- but taken the figures 

mentioned in the said letter for the purpose of calculation/demand etc. 

of duty in the impugned show cause notice; that printout of one letter 

on three pages in Gujarati with the same fonts like other statements in 

Gujarati and also number of pages as Annexure to the said letter; that 

no work sheet! Annexure similar to what is produced in the is letter 

were produced earlier as against what is claimed in the said letter 

dated 09.05.2016 establishing that signatures were obtained; that 

entire investigation including documents, letter etc. said to have been 

produced by one of the directors are fabricated by the officers and 

prejudicial; that Month wise Duty Work Sheet prepared by the officer 

with statement dated 20.08.2015 and signatures of Appellant No.2 

were taken in the facts and circumstances that there is no mention in 

the statement about preparation of work sheet and obtaining signature 

on it; that worksheet produced with the said letter dated 09.05.2016 is 

also not exactly same especially entry of August, 2014 in the 

worksheet prepared with statement dated 20.08.2015; that director 

cannot go to file affidavit for each and every event that happened 

during investigation and adjudicating authority has erred in holding that 

no affidavit was filed in respect of said letter dated 09.05.2016. 

(viii) Appellant had requested for cross examination of eight persons 

in terms of Section 9D (2) of the Act ibid under letter dated 22.02.2017; 

that request was reiterated vide letter dated 04.03.2017 and 

subsequently, it had added names of two panch witnesses for cross 

examination; that adjudicating authority is first of all required to 

summon the person and examine him before admitting his statement 
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time of quality test in every tile manufacturing plant and there is no 

reason to allege that appellant is an exception; that stock of inferior 

grade wall tiles at the time of search is not in dispute as much as it has 

not been alleged that entire stock lying in the premises was of 

premium grade; that it can not be presumed and alleged on the basis 

of oral evidence that invoices were fabricated to lower grades of 

finished goods to evade payment of central excise duty and without 

physical stock verification it can not be held that shortage of wall tiles 

was of premium grade; that these OS forms were maintained just for 

internal purpose and the same cannot be compared with quantity and 

quality referred in tax invoices and it can not be said that quantity 

shown in OS forms were actually cleared by it, in absence of any 

supporting documentary evidence. 

(x) Statement of Loading Supervisor recorded on 20.08.2015 is not 

reliable for the reason that certain unlawful admissions were obtained 

from him under duress and coercion by the officers and he was never 

allowed to go through contents typed therein. He has also affirmed this 

fact on oath in his Affidavit as discussed supra; that it is evident from 

his statement that he had joined appellant before few days of the 

search in August, 2015; that he cannot certify authenticity of OS forms 

of earlier period; that Loading Supervisor has nowhere deposed in his 

statement that tiles loaded under his supervision were of premium 

grade only; that it is simply stated that he arranged loading of the tiles 

mentioned in the OS forms and that the same were manufactured by 

appellant; that statement of the said Loading Supervisor cannot be 

admitted as evidence since the procedure mandated under Section 9D 

of the Central Excise Act, 1944 was not followed and his cross 

examination was disallowed; that confirmation of contents of by Shri 

Hardik Jagodara, Billing clerk and Appellant No.2 was not hold good 

as much as they had also filed affidavits contesting that their 

respective statements were recorded under threat and coercion on 

20.08.2015. 
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(xi) Appellant submitted that when they receive order on telephone, 

such order status forms are prepared and simultaneously check about 

availability of truck for the particular area, truck driver name, mobile 

number and write down on such OS; that when the buyer arrange to 

deposit money in their bank account, then and then goods were 

loaded in the truck as per the description mentioned in such OS and 

prepared Central Excise Invoice for such OS form, if the buyer don't 

arrange payment, they never load the goods in the trucks and such 

orders are cancelled. Buyers inquire about the rate and availability of 

goods of particular design, colour etc and order for tentative quantity. 

Since, in the area of Morbi and Wankaner more than 500 units 

approximately are engaged in manufacture of various tiles, buyers 

inquire from number of units and place order to the manufacturer who 

offer most competitive rates. Therefore, such OS cannot be 

considered as proof of clearance in absence of other corroborative 

evidence like actual transportation of finished goods, receipt of 

payment for sale of finished goods, purchase of raw materials, 

payment for raw materials, transportation of raw materials, actual 

manufacture, use of electricity/gas etc. 

(xii) Department has never verified about procurement of raw 

materials, power consumption, use of manpower, transportation of raw 

materials, payment to raw material supplier etc. and clearance of such 

goods by them. The department has presumed that figures mentioned 

in the OS form and the said Annexure attached with letter dated 

09.05.2016 were manufactured and cleared by appellant; that 

Appellant does not have capacity to manufacture that much goods in 

its manufacturing plant and department has never verified about the 

installed capacity, required machineries etc. Similarly, department has 

never verified about actual clearance of the goods to the persons, 

receipt of payment etc. for the goods shown in the said Annexure 
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attached to the letter dated 09.05.2016; that production register 

withdrawn during the panchnama is not for entire period of demand but 

only for short period and therefore, no adverse inference can be drawn 

from it for entire period covered under the order. 

(xiii) Appellant contested Para 36.19 of the impugned order wherein it 

is held that actual production during the period from 01.07.2015 to 

19.08.2015 was 3,38,157 boxes and only 1,24,617 boxes were 

reported in DSA. Appellant submitted that average comes to reporting 

of 37% of production and remaining 73% of production was 

suppressed by appellant which clearly shows the quantum of 

production suppressed by appellant in preceding period also; that 

actual production! clearance of excisable goods cannot be gauged on 

the basis of speculations or comparison of figures of alleged excess 

production covering period of merely 50 days, in absence of credible 

evidence; that department has not verified capacity to manufacture, 

procurement of required raw materials, use of manpower, use of 

electricity, payment to raw material suppliers, receipt of sale proceeds 

etc.; that it is settled position of law that without corroborative 

evidence, demand cannot be raised on the basis of private records 

and relied upon following decisions in support of their claim. 

- Sulekhram Steels P Ltd - 2011 (273) E.L.T. 140 (Tn. - Ahmd.) 

- Indo Green Textile P Ltd - 2007 (212) E.L.T. 343 (Tn. - Mumbai) 

- K. Haninath Gupta -1994(71) ELT 980(T-SRB) 

- Krishna & Co. - 1998(97) E.L.T. 74(Tribunal) 

- Ganga Rubber md. - 1989(39) E.L.T. 650, 655(T-NRB) 

- Gurpreet Rubber md. - 1996(82) E.L.T. 347(Tribunal) 

- Kashmir Vanaspati (P) Ltd. - 1989(39) E.L.T. 655(T) 

- Ashwin Vanaspati md P. Ltd. - 1992(59) E.L.T. 175(Tribunal) 

R. G. Electronics- 1992(60) E.L.T. 121 (T-SRB) 

(xiv) Appellant also argued that going by the alleged clandestine 

clearances in the show cause notice, total production of 21,22,359 
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(recorded clearances of 11,09,309 box +alleged clandestine 

clearances of 10,13,050 box) is exceeds production capacity of 

around 12,83,500 box during the disputed period as per their 

production capacity of 4000 to 4500 box of wall tiles per day excluding 

days of closure of the unit; that department has not discharged burden 

of proof on this count. 

(xv) Appellant submitted that only two small local customers in terms 

of just 0.60% of the total sale to the customers were examined; that 

Appellant No.2 in his statement dated 20.08.2015 tendered names (i) 

MIs. Shree Rushit Marketing, (ii) M/s. Swami Marketing, (iii) M/s. Keyla 

Marketing and (iv) M/s. Vedant Tiles- all of Morbi; that he was also 

specifically asked while recording his statement on 19.11.2015 to 

provide details of their major buyers (last question on page no. 3) 

wherein he had given details of major buyers as (i) M/s. R.K. 

Enterprise, (ii) M/s. Radhe Marketing, (iii) M/s. Gatral Tiles, (iv) M/s. 

Aaksnsha Ceramic, (v) M/s. Bhagvati Enterprise, (vi) M/s. Trinity 

Ceramics and (vii) MIs. Swami Marketing. However, despite having 

inquired and recorded details of their 11 customers to whom wall tiles 

were allegedly sold in clandestine manner, investigation has 

deliberately preferred not to examine any of the said customers, 

except the two, in support of the fallacious allegations made in the 

notice; that no notice is issued to the said remaining customers for the 

reason that there is no evidence on record to allege that the said 

remaining customers had abetted appellant in evasion of central 

excise duty. This would also mean that whatever goods were sold to 

the said remaining customers by it was not removed in any clandestine 

manner; that out of total 329 invoices issued during the disputed 

period, investigation has collected evidence about sale of inferior. 

grade of tiles under tax invoice only in respect of 10 such invoices; that 

even if statements of these two customers are considered to be true 

for sake of convenience, even in that case ratio of the said statements 
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cannot be applied across all other customers whose names appear in 

the relied upon documents viz. OS forms but were not examined 

during investigation, particularly when they are not issued notice in this 

case.; that only 78,212 Boxes valued at Rs.1,50,25,580/- alleged to 

have been sold without invoice to these two customers which very 

negligible against the total alleged clandestine clearance in the show 

cause notice; that even if the two statements of it buyers, though not 

free from doubt for the reasons discussed supra, are accepted to be 

true for the sake of argument, even in that case department can only 

demand duty in respect of the goods purchased by the said buyers 

which has been recorded in the RUDs and the same works out to be 

Rs. 8,60,900/-; that mammoth duty demand cannot be raised only on 

the basis of statements of just two customers to whom appellant had 

sold goods only 10.00% to total sales; that investigation could have 

asked its director or the employees to tender names! addresses of 

other customers and thereafter recorded their statements; that, it could 

have been inquired from drivers about place of delivery of goods by 

using the truck driver mobile numbers were available on the said OS. 

(xvi) No evidence is adduced to prove that any of their raw materials 

i.e. different types of clay, chemicals! colours, lignite, marble slurry, frit 

etc. required to manufacture such huge quantity of wall tiles was 

actually purchased by it without accounting for the same in their 

accounts against cash payments; that Director's statements dated 

20.08.2015 reveals that in answer to question no. 20 on page 6, it was 

deposed by him that they had purchased some clay without bill; that 

no further investigation was carried out by the investigation. 

(xvii) No evidence in support of transportation of the finished goods is 

produced and no efforts were made by investigation to interrogate any 

transporter and record his statement to sustain the allegation that the 

goods were actually removed and transported from the unit of M/s. 
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Benito despite the fact that names of drivers and mobile phone 

numbers are also written in the OS forms. 

(xviii) It is not explained as to at what price goods were sold to the 

customers; that Assessable value and sale price cannot be same; that 

even if assessable value is considered as sale value then also, 

evidence of huge amount of receipt of cash by is not found by the 

investigation during the search; that if this allegation is believed to be 

true, there has to be at least some positive evidence in the notice to 

sustain the same particularly when such huge amount in cash 

transactions is involved; that none of the buyers have adduced any 

evidence in support of their deposition that differential sale proceeds 

were paid in cash; that nothing on record to suggest that appellant 

were receiving raw materials against illicit cash payments. Appellant 

refers and relies upon various decisions amongst other following 

judgments:- 

Ambica Metal Works - 1990(29) ECR 549 

Icycold Commercial Eneterpirse - 1994(69) E.L.T. 337(Tribunal) 

M.S.S. Foods Products Ltd. - 2011 (264) E.L.T. 165 (M.P.) 

Laxmi Enginerring Works- 2010 (254) E.L.T. 205 (P & H) 

Shree Nathjee Industries - 2011 (267) E.L.T. 241 (Tn. - Ahmd.) 

Hans Casting Pvt Ltd- 1998(102) E.L.T. 139(TRIBUNAL) 

Jay Laminart Ltd 1998(102) E.L.T. 402(Tribunal) honourable 

Prabhavati Sahakari Soot Girini Ltd 1990(48) E.L.T. 522(T) 

Roxy Enterprise P Ltd- 1992(40) ECR 361(T-NRB) 

V.K.Thampy -1994(69) E.L.T. 300(Tribunal) 

Raj Ratan Industries Ltd - 2013 (292) E.L.T. 123 (Tn. - Del.) 

Kuber Tobacco Products Ltd - 2013 (290) E.L.T. 545 (Tn. - Del.) 

Hindustan Machines - 2013 (294) E.L.T. 43 (Tn. - Del.) 

Ruby Chlorates (P) Ltd- 2006 (204) E.L.T. 607 (Tn. - Chennai) 

R.V. Steels P Ltd 2009 (243) E.L.T. 316 (Tn. - Chennai) 

Arya Fibres Pvt.Ltd.- 2014 (311) ELT 529 (Tn. Ahmd.) 

Gupta Synthetics Ltd. - 2014 (312) ELT 225 (Tn. Ahmd.) 
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as evidence in the proceedings and then to allow noticee cross 

examination of the said person before him in terms of provisions of 

Section 9D(1) (b); that therefore, question of explaining reasons for 

cross examination is statutorily not warranted; that searches/seizures 

and arrests in Central Excise matters are required to be made in 

accordance provisions of Section 18 of the Central Excise Act, 1944; 

that raiding officer had deliberately picked up two so called panchas 

from different localities of Rajkot which is nearly at a distance of 70 

kms from its factory premises, that too almost illiterate and were 

drivers of the private vehicles; that panch witnesses were not selected 

by the officers in accordance with provisions of Section 18 of the 

Central Excise Act, 1944 and adjudicating authority has without 

considering these facts summarily rejected request for cross 

examination. Appellant's request for examination of Ten persons 

whose statements were relied upon and includes Two Panchas were 

required to be allowed; that cross examination of employees, Director 

and two customers whose statements were relied upon in the case 

was extremely essential before admitting their statements as evidence 

in the impugned proceedings; that it is settled law that any statement 

recorded under Section 14 of the Central Excise Act, 1944 can be 

admitted as evidence only when its authenticity is established under 

provisions of Section 9D(1) of the Act. Appellant relied upon decisions 

of Hon'ble High Court of Delhi, in the case of M/s. J.K. Cigarettes Ltd. 

Reported as 2009 (242) ELT 189 (Del), M/s. Flevel International 

reported as - 2016 (332) E.L.T. 416 (Del.), Hon'ble High Court of 

Punjab & Haryana's decisions in the case of M/s Jindal Drugs P Ltd 

reported as 2016-TIOL-1230-HC-P&H-CX, M/s. M/s Ambika 

International reported as 2016-TIOL-1238-HC-P&H-CX., M/s. C-Tech 

Industries, reported as 2016-TIOL-2749-HC-P&H-CX . Appellant also 

relied upon following case laws in support of their contentions:- 

- M/s PMS International Pvt Lted -2014-TIOL-1669-CESTAT-DEL. 
- Basudeve Card- 2013 (294) E.L.T. 353 (Del.) 
- M/s Andaman Timber Industries - 2015-TlOL-255-SC-CX 
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- Rajam industries (P) Ltd. -2010 (255) E.L.T. 161 (Mad.) 
- Parmarth Iron Ltd -2010 (255) E.L.T. 496 (All.) 
- Jayshree Vyapar Ltd -2015 (327) E.L.T. 380 (Tn. - Ahmd.) 
- Videocon International Ltd - 2010 (250) E.L.T. 553 (Tn. - 

Mumbai) 
- Nico Extrusion P Ltd - 2009 (248) E.L.T. 497 (Tn. - Ahmd.) 

- Silkfab Exports - 2007 (208) E.L.T. 359 (Tn. - Bang.) 
- Aum Aluminium P Ltd - 2005 (190) E.L.T. 393 (Tn. - Mumbai) 
- Sanket Food Products P Ltd -2005 (188) E.L.T. 107 (Tn. - Del.) 
- Trinity Electric Syndicate P Ltd - 2005 (179) E.L.T. 53 (Tn. - 

Mumbal) 
- Sal Kripa Exim (P) Ltd - 2003 (156) E.L.T. 225 (Tn. - Bang.) 
- Amrutbhai Vasudevbhai Patel - 2003 (156) E.L.T. 222 (Tn. - 

Murnbai) 

(ix) Appellant explained the pattern of Order Status forms and 

submitted that it contains tabulated pre-typed columns of design and 

four different Grade i.e. "pre", "Corn", "Rej", and "Com-I"; that 

department has not verified as to who had prepared such OS Forms 

and the purpose for preparing it; that when author of such documents 

is not known no reliance can be placed on such private unauthentic 

records; that presumption of quantity and quality of tiles shown in OS 

forms were of premium grade is erroneous and unfounded as much as 

many of the forms also contain hand written figures of wall tile boxes in 

last column i.e. 'COM-1' which are matching figures under column 

'PRE'; that if these OS forms are believed to be representing true 

figures of clearance, in that case it can be inferred that quantity shown 

in many of such forms were of 'COM-l' grade resulting payment of 

central excise duty on higher assessable value for the goods of inferior 

grade by Appellant and similar is the case where no tax invoices were 

found against OS forms; that as regards MRP on right side corner of 

OS forms was written for ease of reference for the person preparing 

tax invoice was done with a view of facilitate billing process; that it is 

erroneous to presume that all goods referred in the OS fonms/ 

Dispatch Slips were of premium grade only. Appellant submitted that 

certain goods are always found to be of second/third etc. quality at the 
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(xix) There is no suppression etc. on their part and hence extended 

period cannot be invoked in the present case; that investigation has 

not alleged anything about suppression etc. but mechanically re-

produced the wording of proviso to Section hA of the Central Excise 

Act, 1944; that proviso to Section hA (1) of the Central Excise Act, 

1944, cannot be invoked in the present case. Appellant, for the above 

contention rely upon following decisions:- 

M/s. Godrej Foods Ltd - 1993(68) E.L.T. 28, 32(MP) 

M/s. Cosmic Dye Chemicals - 1995(75) E.L.T. 721,723(SC) 

M/s. H.M.M. Limited -1995(76) E.L.T. 497(SC) 

(xx) Appellant without admitting anything further submits that the 

learned Additional Commissioner has held that the goods allegedly 

cleared in clandestine manner are liable to confiscation under Rule 25 

of the Central Excise Rules, 2002; that there is no evidence of 

clandestine manufacture, clearance etc. and therefore, the same 

cannot be held liable to confiscation. 

(xxi) No penalty can be imposed on them under Section 1 1AC or 

under Rule 25 of the Central Excise Rules, 2002; that when duty 

demand itself is devoid of merits, question of imposing penalty under 

Section 1 1AC of the Central Excise Act, 1944 read with Rule 25 of the 

Central Excise Rules, 2002 does not arise in this case; that the duty 

demand worked out in the impugned notice and confirmed under the 

impugned order is artificial and unfounded; that the evidence relied 

upon is not sustainable in the eyes of law and that there is no other 

trustworthy corroborative evidence in support of hollow allegations.; 

that penalty imposed on it deserves to be set aside; that they relied 

upon decision of Hon'ble High Court of Gujarat in the case of M/s 
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Saurashtra Cement ltd reported as 2010 (260) E.L.T. 71 (Guj.). 

Appellant No.2 

(I) Appellant No.2 submitted that as per Rule 26 of the Rules, it is 

essential to bring out specific role played by an individual which made 

certain goods liable to confiscation under the Act or Rules; that the 

said individual should aware of the fact that the goods were liable to 

confiscation; that in his case, no such specific admission is recorded in 

his statement; that admission of guilt claimed to have been recorded in 

his statements is far from truth; that no copy of any of statements were 

provided at relevant time and he was not aware about so called 

confessions recorded there; that he also filed an affidavit interalia 

affirming on oath that the officers had created hostile atmosphere 

during the course of search; that CCTV cameras kept for safety 

purposes were closed during the said search; that mobile phones of 

directors and employees were withdrawn by the officers; that without 

physical stock taking of finished goods, the officers had concluded of 

their own wish and will to claim huge shortage of wall tiles of premium 

grade; that duty liability was created unlawfully on the basis of certain 

loose papers; that he was compelled to sit in the officer from morning 

to evening and informed that he will be arrested in the evening in case 

of non deposition of Cheques by Appellant No.1; that cheques where 

given only on being threatened and not voluntarily ; that subsequent 

statements dated 19.11.2015, 25.04.2016 and 24.05.2016 were 

intentionally recorded in English; that therefore he was not aware of 

the contents recorded in such ready made statements which he came 

to know only when copies of the same were received with the 

impugned notice; that therefore first opportunity to retract or disown his 

confessions was available only at the time of filing reply to the SCN; 

that impugned order does not define as to how he was liable to penalty 

under Rule 26(1) except para 41.1 on page 79 of the impugned order. 
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(ii) It is further submitted that as per findings of the impugned order 

Appellant is guilty of only goods cleared without payment of duty by 

Appellant No.1 and not found guilty of goods alleged to have been 

cleared at undervalued rates; that no documentary evidence to sustain 

the allegations; that seized documents are not at all sustainable as 

evidence for the reasons detailed in appeal filed by Appellant No.1; 

that there is no evidence about cash payments made to these 

supplies; that allegation of clandestine manufacture and clearance of 

goods itself is fallacious for the reasons discussed in detail by his 

company in its Appeal; that he relied upon the decisions in the case of 

Manoj Kumar Pani reported as 2010(260) ELT 92 (Tn- Del), M/s. Aarti 

Steel Ind reported as 2010-(262) ELT 462 (Tri-Mumbai) and M/st 

Nirmal lnductomelt P Ltd reported as 2010 (259)ELT 243 (Tn- Del). 

Appellant No.3 

Appellant contended imposition of penalty under Rule 26(1) on the 

ground that he was not explained contents recorded in the statement 

dated 30.11.2016 and he was informed by the officer that his formal 

statement was required to be recorded in connection with case against 

Appellant No.1 and he has put his signature in pre-typed statement; 

that details of his statement came to his knowledge only when he 

received copy of along with show cause notice and hence could not 

retract depositions recorded at the material time; that he has always 

received goods of the grades shown in respective tax invoices and 

payment were also made through banking channel; that no cash 

amount was paid to Appellant No.1; that he was a commission agent 

between the actual customer and supplier of tiles; that he has no 

reason for him to purchase goods either without invoice or at 

undervalued rates from Appellant No.1; that he could not remember 

each and every transaction with a particular party when such 
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transactions cover a period of 12 months; that documents discussed 

and relied upon in the case were not recovered from his possession 

and seized from their party and hence not binding on him; that show 

cause notice nowhere defines as to how he was aware that any of the 

goods purchased by him was liable to confiscation; that without 

bringing on record his specific act and omission with tangible evidence 

no penalty can be imposed upon him in light of the Hon'ble 

CESTAT's decision in the case of Ramesh Haridas Ashar reported as 

195(ELT) 75 (Tri-Mumbai) and in the case of Manoj Kumar Pani 

reported as 2010(260) ELT 92 (Tn- Del). 

Appellant No.4 

Appellant contended imposition of penalty under Rule 26 (1) on the 

similar grounds and points raised by the Appellant No.3 as above. He 

submitted that he was not explained contents recorded in the 

statement dated 30.11.2016 and he was informed by the officer that 

his formal statement was required to be recorded in connection with 

case against Appellant No.1 and he has put his signature in pre-typed 

statement; that he was asked to put his dated signatures on each page 

of a pre-typed statement and some other papers; that he was not 

aware of the contents type in English; that details of his statement 

came to his knowledge only when he received copy of along with show 

cause notice and hence could not retract depositions recorded at the 

material time; that he has always received goods of the grades shown 

in respective tax invoices and payment were also made through 

banking channel; that no cash amount was paid to Appellant No.1; that 

he was a commission agent between the actual customer and supplier 

of tiles; that he has no reason for him to purchase goods either without 

invoice or at undervalued rates from Appellant No.1; that he could not 

remember each and every transaction with a particular party when 

such transactions cover a period of 12 months; that documents 
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discussed and relied upon in the case were not recovered from his 

possession and seized from their party and hence not binding on him; 

that show cause notice nowhere defines as to how he was aware that 

any of the goods purchased by him was liable to confiscation; that 

without bringing on record his specific act and omission with tangible 

evidence , no penalty can be imposed upon him in light of the Hon'ble 

CESTAT's decision in the case of Ramesh Haridas Ashar reported as 

195(ELT) 75 (Tri-Mumbai) and in the case of Manoj Kumar Pani 

reported as 2010(260) ELT 92 (Tn- Del). 

4. Personal Hearing in the matter was attended by Shri P. D, 

Rachchh, Advocate on behalf of Appellant No.1 and reiterated the 

grounds of appeals. Shri Rachchh submitted written submission 

supporting his contention! grounds of appeal with case laws. He 

submitted that the cross examination of the witness should be allowed; 

that the total production capacity is not that much what has been basis 

of SON! Demand; that Technical Opinion of Manish T. Mistry dated 

20.08.2013 was submitted to support above contention. - 

5. In written submission, Appellant summarized all the points raised 

in their Grounds of appeal and interalia also explained the use of 

'Order Status' form. Appellant submitted that such order status forms 

were partly prepared on computer showing name of the buyers, date, 

total quantity, designed, PRE, COM, REJ & 4 with sub-columns under 

each grade Order Godown but only in the PRE columns figures are 

typed and rest of the columns some hand written figures etc. are 

written. Even dates are changed with Pen and also hand written MRP, 

Truck Number, Mobile Number etc. on such pages; that in the area of 

factory of appellant viz. Morbi-Wankaner there are around more than 

600 units are engaged in the manufacture of tiles and it is the biggest 

cluster of tiles manufacturers in the world, It is practice of the industry 
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that goods are sold by the manufacturers at factory gate and they 

normally got orders over telephone or some buyers may visit to the 

factory premises, therefore, such papers were prepared with the 

details with quoted MRP and as per the request of the customers 

appellant checks about availability of truck for the particular destination 

and note down truck number, mobile number of driver etc. Particular 

customer also inquires about rate and other things with other 

manufacturers and place final order with the manufacturer who offered 

him competitive rates. Once he places the final order and makes the 

payment in the banks account of the appellant goods were loaded in 

the said truck number and dispatched. Therefore, many times in 

absence of final order and payment of goods mentioned in such order 

status forms were never cleared from the factory premises. However, 

the officers had got confession from the staffs as well as directors of 

the company while recording their statements about clearance of 

goods mentioned therein without invoice and without payment of duty 

or with invoices but with inferior grade etc. The staffs and directors had 

retracted their statements and affidavits are already submitted with 

appeal memorandum. 

5.1 "Production Register" maintained for the period 09.06.2015 to 

19.08.2015 recovered from appellant's factory premises during the 

course of search and on comparison with the said figures with daily 

stock account register — RG-1 maintained it is alleged that 2,31,255 

Boxes were clandestinely removed or removed by under 

grading/under invoicing; that it does not bear any heading of grade on 

the columns on all the pages except on few pages; that author of the 

said register is not brought on records; that it is looked like rough 

register prepared by the production supervisor and it cannot be relied 

upon to fasten the duty liability upon appellant in absence of other 

corroborative evidence of that many quantity. 
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5.2 Show cause notice does not enclose any duty calculation sheet 

with the show cause notice but simply relying upon the one letter dated 

09.05.2016 for quantification of the duty demand; that the officers had 

collected 3 blank letter heads duly signed by one of the directors and 

typed letter with the same font of statements dated 20.08.15 & 

27.08.15 as it is stated in the said letter that it enclosed Annexure 

prepared on 06.05.2016 & 09.05.2016 according to which total evasion 

of duty comes to Rs.1,75,83,016/- during the period August, 2014 to 

August, 2015 and they admit duty liability; that when the order status 

forms etc were seized under the Panchnama and copy of the same 

was made available only with the show cause notice as mentioned in 

Annexure — A to the SCN, how one can prepare such annexure and 

submit with the letter that too with confession about quantification & 

duty evasion by them? It shows that in absences of sufficient 

evidences, the officers tried to create evidence against the appellant. 

5.3 Appellant reiterated points relating to examination of only two 

buyers, production in excess of their daily capacity of 400/4500 Box 

and others which is covered in the Appeal memorandum. 

6. Shri D.S. Dhruve, Authorized representative, on behalf of the 

Appellant No.2, Appellant No.3 and Appellant No.4 informed vide his 

letter dated 21 .02.2018 that their submission in respective grounds of 

appeal may be considered full and final and waived the opportunity of 

personal hearing in these three appeals. 

Findinqs:  

7. I have carefully gone through the facts of the case, impugned 

order and written as well as oral submissions made by the Appellants. 

The issue to be decided is whether the impugned order, in the facts of 

this case, confirming demand and imposing penalty is correct or 

otherwise. 
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8. I find that the grounds of appeals filed by the Appellants inter- 

alia, are that there are no corroborative evidences of purchasing of raw 

materials, use of power and production capacity of the unit are also not 

taken into consideration and cross examination of witnesses not 

allowed by the adjudicating authority as per Section 9D of the Act and 

records of "Order Status forms" taken are not admissible evidences. 

8.1 I find that Appellant No.1 has come up with plea to reject each 

and every piece of evidence available in the case against them. 

Appellant No.1 has denied Pancha witnesses, statements given by 

director, buyers, employees and all documents seized under 

Panchnama proceedings. Appellant No.1 has challenged the entire 

investigation relying upon Affidavit filed by Appellant No.2, one of the 

Directors of Appellant No.1 who was present during the Search and 

whose confessional statements were recorded during the investigation 

and vehemently argued for cross examination of the persons and 

proceedings under Section 9D of the Act by the Adjudicating authority. 

8.2 It is on record that a search was carried out at the premises of 

Appellant No.1 on 19/20.08.2015 under Panchanama proceedings and 

statements of Loading Supervisor, Billing Clerk and Director of 

Appellant No.1 (who is also Appellant No.2) were recorded. Further 

statement of Appellant No.2 was recorded on 27.8.2015 and Appellant 

No.2 admitted clandestine manufacture of tiles and clearances thereof 

and submitted post dated cheques towards duty liability. I find that 

those cheques were materialized spanning the period from 28.08.2015 

to 16.06.2016. In addition to that, a payment of Rs.5,00,000/- is also 

made by the Appellant No.1 electronically on 21.01.2016 after initial 

payment of Rs.40,00,000/- and Rs.10,00,000/- on 28.08.2016. 

Subsequently, payments of Rs.25 Iakh were materialized thorough 5 

cheques each month from Feb, 2016 to June, 2016 making total sum 

of Rs.80,00,000/ prior to issuance of show cause notice . Copy of 
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electronic Transfer dated 21.01 .2016 is reproduced as under (Image-

1):- 

(Image-i) 

8.2.1 Thus, all payments were deposited after the said affidavit 

of 28.08.2015 including voluntary payment through electronic mode. In 

view of these facts that such huge payments through banking channel 

in long span of time which included electronic transfer from Appellant's 

own end, I am unable to accept Appellant's plea that those cheques 

were obtained forcefully especially considering an electronic transfer 

which department can not force such payment. The appellant's 

argument cannot be believed, especially because no efforts were 

made to stop payment contesting the proceedings and appellant wants 

to rely on affidavit filed to that effect way back on 28.8.2015. It is also 

on record that appellant did not stopped the payment and also not 

submitted copy of affidavit before the department or investigation. A 

question arises that how entire management of the Appellant be forced 
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by the department, had there been no evasion! 

8.3 Appellant contested the profession of Panchas and were not 

from the nearby area. I find that Appellant in his affidavit accepted that 

Central Excise Officers had visited their factory, employees who made 

affidavit also stated that Officers introduced them as central excise 

officers. Secondly, it is recorded fact in the Panchanama that Panchas 

were called for and started from Rajkot. Thus, Panchas were present 

at the time of entering in the factory premises. Thirdly, Appellant No.1 

in appeal memorandum, at Para 13.2.4 also stated that Panchas were 

roaming in the premises of Appellant. All these facts reveal that 

proceedings were carried out in cordial and transparent manner and 

Panchas were present there right from the beginning of the 

proceedings. I find no merit in Appellant's argument that Panchas were 

directed to put signatures and their argument about profession of 

Panchas is not acceptable as witness has no connection to his 

profession. There is no allegation that Panchas were benefitted 

because of proceedings initiated against the Appellant No.1. I find that 

Appellant No.2 had perused Panchnama and accepted it's contents 

and truthfulness on 20/08/2015, 27/08/2015, 06/05/2016, 09/05/2016. I 

also find that in the statement dated 24.05.2016 Appellant No.2 has 

stated that he has visited the Central Excise office on 06/05/2016 & 

09/05/206 and gone through their company's records seized on 19/20-

08-2015 and this statement was recorded in presence of Shri Pankaj 

Patel, in his own hand, who stated that the statement was recorded in 

his presence and explained to Appellant No.2 Copies of relevant 

portion are reproduced below(lmage-2 & lmage-3):- 
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Statement dated 24.5.2016 recorded in presence of Mr. Pankai Patel and 

acknowledqed in his own hand writing 

Image-3 

ne called br in inquiry or br recording 01 statemeflLS-, WC Will lUlI i..'-' 

in investigation and remain present to give statements. My above statement is 

as per my say. I have given my above statement without any threat or 

inducement. Arid I have read this statement, understand it, all the matters are 

same as I speak to the officer. I put my dated signature on the all pages of this 

statement.
- iJ j '1'j 'P -L 

t 

( )J-) \qr-y-c - C- Cut 

 h- 

-t c ' h * 

T seb me, 

H 
(D. N. Jani) 

Inspector (AE), 
Central Excise 

Rajkot. 

FyI. LID. HENITi) 1.LIiAMt(: 

'icToP 
(Kamleshbhai Dhanjibhi oringa 

Director of M/s. Benito Ceramic Pvt. Ltd., Morbi 
Before me 

(Manish Kumar) 

Superintendent (AE), 
Central Excise 
Rajko. 
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Before me  
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(Manish Kumar) 
Superintendent (AE), 
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8.3.1 I further find that another two statements of Appellant No.2 

dated 19.11.2015 and dated 25.04.2016 were recorded in presence of 

Shri Pankaj Kawar and Shri Navinchandra koringa, who were known to 

him and both not a departmental person in his own hand writing 

acknowledged the recording of statements as per his say and 

understanding of Appellant No.2. Copies are reproduced hereinbelow 

as lmage-4 & lmage-5 :- 

Image-4 

Image-5 
be calleu 1W 111 11.xquiiy UI ior recording of statements, we 

in nvestigat10fl and remain present to give statements. My above statement is 

as per my say. I have given my above statement without Y threat or 

inducement. And I have read this statement, understand it, all the matters ai-e 

same as I speak to the officer. Iput my dated signature on the all pages of this 

statement. 
e1ne -  Pec9ed' r'c') (1( ~g-/2C 

.jdell / Th r' VJc3 

taJZ)' C.-b) t5 . 1 fk /1-) 
If 

L'C "/ Ij 171 

(',e. e'1 ' F 

1r 
p lc ((p'ç 

Read by me and for correctness of 

it put my dated signature here. 

p 1oit. a..c 1It1 

(Bharatbhai Bachubhai Rajkotia) 

Director of M/s. Benito Ceramic 
Pvt. Ltd., Morbi 

flitc Cer1rlu ,''t. Ijd 

(Kamleshbhai Dhanjibhai Koringa) 
Director of M/s, Benito Ceramic Pvt. Ltd., Morbi 

m  

Page 28 of 49 



(. 

1&B ((EC 

c-t ;t5tta3, i°dt. 

1 IL B 

Appeal No: V2/253 to 256/RAJ/2017 

29 

8.3.2 I find that all these three statements were recorded after 

affidavit was filed by the Appellant No.2 on 28.08.2015 and in 

presence of three different individuals, who had acknowledged the 

content in their own hand writing. I find that these facts prove beyond 

doubt that no threat or coercion was applied and also that no cross 

examination was sought for in respect of these persons or none of 

them has come up to counter their presence and any duress or 

coercion upon them by the officers of the department. 

8.3.3 I also find that the statements of Production Supervisor, 

Loading Supervisor and Billing Clerk were also perused and 

truthfulness was accepted by Appellant No.2 on 19.11.2015 also in 

addition to acceptance on 20.08.2015 & 27.08.2015. Copies of 

relevant pages are as under as lmage-6, lmage-7 & Image-8 

respectively: 

(Image-6) 

Statement dated 19.08.15 of Production Supervisor perused on 19111/15.  

(aai1 kc{ ct,jia t& iut ii.'{1 18-I 1 t31 tZ31 

iica ojaft s cuou(l ui cçpj c4j t1t(t 4af1. 
aojofl ( oj  qj Rj,[t (3cj Ctijklczfl lfO1 ° 

Riaoio{t tit ta wft d1luii u1 4l l tij . 

-o•ic 

(1 cflt1 ltQU5 

a 1wt c; t(&t 

oT '&&it jt1c1It 

T1"O 

2. 

Bn1to Ceramic Pvt. Lt& 

ia 
Director 

(ito{It 4t), Benito ColamL 

et(ath (Rc1t), 

t&Ut tla. DirociQi 
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Statement dated 20.08.15 of Billinq Clerk perused on 20/8/15, 27/8/15 and on 

19/11/15 also  

(I mage-7) 

tt 1°14C.°1 ItC1L 4tfl atuL O1UU.t OILU 'i 

Sc4I4t .4ttC1 cttfl 4L1 iL[t Ctt3Lt[t Kit Cj C(ct Ctt14t JUCt at2fl. 

titft (o1d cd.fl, 31ct 4[1 (d1tLCt( j'C4 t, t6 

tlft tqtL fJ 1tt1 4Lft cti4 ttt 'dI t 4L'j !• 

ice 20V6115 
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a Pl (Lt 1IL ((S 

a?L (i?3 5Et1 Benito Cea Pvt. Ltd 

241:fl t{ 

Ccr ry 

(S5 1at~Ii), 
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c.t &(Wi L° 

Page 2 of 2 Onito Ceramic Pvt. Lt 

DirQctot 
29d 

OCniio
- 

'Id. 

Director 
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Statement dated 20.08.15 of Loading Supervisor perused on 20/08/15, 2718115 

and 19111/15 also.  

8.4 I also find that Appellant No.2 and other director registered 

their affidavit before Notary on 28.8.2015 and other staff of Appellant 

registered their affidavit on 7.7.2016. I also find that no affidavit was 

submitted before any of the investigating officers of the department or 

before the investigation by any of above persons. Thus, affidavit made 

and registered before the Notary are not the affidavits filed with the 

department and hence of no legal significance and appear to have 

been made only to be utilized during adjudication/ appellate 

proceedings. I find that Loading Supervisor and Billing clerk in their 

affidavit dated 07.07.2016 say that a mob was rushed into the factory 

and introduced themselves as central excise officer. I find that this 
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amply clears that officers had explained their status even to 

employees of the Appellant. I also find that affidavits were not 

produced before the Senior officer of the department nor before any 

civil authority to initiate action against the investigators, if any. If it was 

a case, as stated in Affidavits, then why police complaint was not 

lodged! It is also evident that Affidavit by both the persons were made 

and registered only on 07.07.2016 i.e. after the gap of one year post 

their confessional statement dated 20.08.2015. Those affidavits were 

also not filed with the department until the show cause notice was 

issued. In view of all above facts, I hold that there is no truth in 

affidavits filed and it is only an after thought on part of Appellant No.1 

to get rid of clutches of law and duty liability. 

8.4.1 I also find that Appellant No.2 in his affidavit stated that 

officers had collected loose papers from them and confession was 

obtained on that basis. I further find that in the said affidavit Appellant 

No.2 claimed that they were threatened to be arrested and asked to 

give post dated cheques for different months for total sum of 

Rs.50,00,000/- on 20.08.2015. Appellant in the same affidavit states 

that they have given cheques of Rs.40 lakhs, Rs.10 Lakhs both dated 

27/8/2015 and also post dated cheques for Rs.33 Lakhs and eighteen 

cheques each of Rs.5 lakhs were given. Thus, the contention raised in 

the affidavits, is nothing but an afterthought since they tendered 

cheques of huge sum and this contention also lost merit as much as 

cheques got materialized over period of ten months including a 

voluntary e payment made by them as discussed in forgoing para. 

Similarly, loose paper referred by the Appellant has nothing to do with 

the Order Status forms discussed and explained in the Show Cause 

Notice as well as Appellant's explanation in the statements. 

8.4.2 Therefore, I am of the considered view that these affidavits 

are nothing but an after thought, far from the facts, can only be viewed 
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as tactics for getting out of central excise duty liability arising due to 

overwhelming evidences gathered by the department against the 

appellants. 

8.4.3 It is also important to note that the appellants not only. 

accepted the Panchnama proceedings and earlier statements, but also 

managed to deposit huge sum of Rs.80 Lakhs to the govt. exchequer, 

that too without protest and even prior to issuance of the show cause 

notice. 

8.5 I find that the statements of the persons dated 19.08.2015, 

dated 20.08.2015, dated 27.08.2015, dated 19.11.2015, dated 

25.04.2013 and dated 24.05.2016 have been recorded at different time 

and by different five officers. Therefore, allegations of threat and 

coercion made by the Appellant No.1 is misleading and not supported 

by facts. 

8.6 I find that it is not a case that a single statement has been 

recorded and relied upon but series of statements of Appellant No.2 

and co-noticees over a period of days and months. I am of the 

considered view that the statements recorded at different time over 

such a long period of time and of different persons by different officers 

have not been recorded under duress or threat as is being alleged by 

the Appellants only to get out of clutches of law and to avoid fastening 

of duty lability and consequences thereof. Facts of the statements 

have been independently corroborated by the facts and contents of 

Panchnama dated 20.8.2015 recorded at the time of search. I find that 

appellant in his statement dated 24.05.2016 recorded in question 

answer form and in presence of independent person, Shri Pankaj 

Patel. Therefore, I am of the considered view that all statements are 

correctly relied upon with due evidential value. 
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8.7 Appellant No.1 also contended that statements relied upon in 

show cause notice are not admissible evidences because procedure 

stipulated under sub-section 1 of Section 9D of the Act had not been 

followed by the Adjudicating Authority. Appellant relied upon Hon'ble 

High Court's decision in the case of M/s. J. K Cigarettes Ltd reported 

as 2009 (242) ELT 189 (Del) and several other decisions in the matter. 

I find that in the case on hand, facts remain that Appellant No.2, 

Partner of Appellant No.1, has himself given the name of the persons 

and details against Appellant No.1 in his statement dated 19.11.2015 

and subsequently perused and accepted the correctness and 

genuineness of the facts recorded in it. Thus, statements are not 

recorded at the back of Appellant No.1. The correctness and 

genuineness of the facts are accepted by the person against whom 

the said statements were directed, and hence cross examination of 

Appellant No.2 by Appellant No.1 is not required at all under Section 

9D as much as evidentiary value is accepted by the person against 

whom it is used. I find that adjudicating authority at Para 36.14 given 

specific finding that Appellant No. 2 (on behalf of Appellant No.1) has 

signed and requested for cross examination of Appellant No.2 i.e. 

person seeking cross examination of himself which is a stretched 

action to drag the adjudication proceedings in limbo. I find that 

Appellant No. 2 in his statements, has accepted the correctness of the 

statements relied upon, who also deposed categorically that his 

statements would be utilized as an evidence against him and his 

company. As discussed in foregoing Paras, Appellant No.1 and others 

contention are held to be misleading and after thought, the truthfulness 

of the statements of the witnesses and proceedings of investigation 

are not discredited in this' case. Thus, I find that correctness of the 

statements is established and it is not the case that adjudicating 

authority was deciding the allegations set out in the show cause notice 

only on the basis' of the statements but it includes other evidences 

corroborating the facts of the case coupled with voluntary payments 
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towards accepted duty liability that too during the period of Ten 

months. In the facts of this case, case laws relied upon by the 

Appellant can not be made applicable in this case. I find that the ratio 

of the judgment of Hon'ble Supreme Court in the case of CCE, 

Mumbai Vs. M/s. Klavert Foods India Pvt. Ltd reported as [2011-TIOL-

76-SC-CX], is applicable in the present case, wherein it is held that:- 

"18. During the course of arguments learned counsel appearing for the 

respondent submitted before us that although the aforesaid statements of 

Managing Partner of the Company and other persons were recorded during 

the course of judicial proceedings but the same were retracted statements, 

and therefore, they cannot be relied upon. However, the statements were 

recorded by the Central Excise Officers and they were not police officers.  

Therefore, such statements made by the Managing Partner of the Company 

and other persons containinq all the details about the functioning of the  

company which could be made only with personal knowledge of the  

respondents and therefore could not have been obtained through coercion or 

duress or through dictation. We see no reason why the aforesaid statements 

made in the circumstances of the case should not be considered, looked into 

and relied upon. 

19. We are of the considered opinion that it is established from the record 

that the aforesaid statements were given by the concerned persons out of 

their own volition and there is no allegation of threat, force, coercion, duress 

or pressure being utilized by the officers to extract the statements which 

corroborated each other. Besides, the Managing Partner of the Company on 

his own volition deposited the amount of Rs. 11 Iakhs towards excise duty 

and therefore in the facts and circumstance of the present case, the 

aforesaid statement of the counsel for the respondents cannot be accepted.  

This fact clearly proves the conclusion that the statements of the concerned 

persons were of their volition and not outcome of any duress.  

(Emphasis supplied) 

81.1 I find that the Hon'ble High Court of Allahabad in the case 

of Zaki Isharti reported as 2013 (291) ELT 161 (All) held that retraction 

not addressed to the officer whom the statement was given can not 

take away the effect of statement. Relevant portion is reproduced 

below for ease of reference:- 
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"23. The CESTA T found that the statement of Shri Faiyaz Ahmad was 
clearly incriminating in nature. He sent retraction in the form of telegram 
and also in the form of affidavit filed in person before the Magistrate, and 
sent it to Collector of Central Excise, Kanpur. In the overall context 
including the circumstances in which the gold was seized, his subsequent 
retraction was not treated to have taken away the effect of statement, as 

the retraction was not addressed to the officer to whom the statement was 
qiven. At the most the retraction could be treated as representation or a 
complaint to the Collector of Central Excise, Kanpur. Shri Faiyaz Ahmed 

was arrested and produced before the Magistrate. No complaint was made 
to the Magistrate at the time of remand, to the involuntary nature of the 
statement. 

36. We do not find any error in the findings recorded by the CSTA T that 
the appellant had given the statement recorded on 10-8-1994 under 

Section 108 of the Customs Act under any coercion. The statements 
recorded under Section 108 were therefore riqhtly accepted for exercising 
powers of seizure". 

(Emphasis supplied) 

8.7.2 Hon'ble CESTAT in the case of M/s. J.K. Processors 

reported as 2016 (339) ELT 416 (Tri-Mumbal) has held as under:- 

3. We find that the duty demand has been confirmed on the basis of 
documentary evidence in the form of 11 loose sheets, which has been 
admitted by the proprietor of the appellants and by the Stenter Supervisor, 
Dyeing Master and Excise Clerk to represent production reports. Shri Rahul 
Pai, employed as Dyeing Master has also stated that the loose sheets show 
production for each day. These sheets show the date, name of the party in 
code, where processing was done and date of processing etc. and the 
details contained therein have been clearly explained by the proprietor and 
others in their statements. 
4. It is, further, noted that part duty was also paid by the appellants. The 
plea of the proprietor that his statement was recorded under threat and  
coercion and that he retracted his statement at the earliest opportunity has  
also been dealt with by the Commissioner, who has noted that the proprietor 
has paid some duty after 28-2-1998, when he is stated to have filed affidavit 
before the Metropolitan Maqistrate. In these circumstances, he holds that no  
credibility can be attached to the affidavit. 
5. The evidence on record amply establishes that the appellants had 
manufactured and clandestinely cleared processed fabrics during the period 
above-mentioned. Therefore, we hold that the duty confirmed against the 
appellants cannot be faulted. 

(Emphasis supplied) 
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8.8. Thus, I am of the considered view that statements stand 

not retracted, as discussed above. I find that Hon'ble Bombay High 

Court in the case of M/s. Sharad Ramdas Sangle reported as 2017 

(347) ELT 413 (Born) has also held that where directors have 

themselves admitted the guilt, there is no question of cross 

examination and denial of same does not to give rise to any 

substantial question of law. Relevant portion of the judgment is 

reproduced below:- 

"3. The Tribunal recorded following reason 

"5.1 As regards the denial of cross-examination of Shri Thoive and Shri 

Ashok Kumar Yadav and whether the said denial has caused any prejudice 

to the Appellants, it is seen from the records that the entries made in the 

private records were corroborated by Shri Ramdas Shivram San gle, 

Dire ctor of the Appellant firm and Shri Sharad Ramdas San gle, Proprietor 

of MIs. Ambica Scrap Merchant through whom the clandestinely removed 

goods, were sold wherein they had admitted that the entries recorded are 

true and correct and pertain to the unaccounted production, purchase of 

raw materials without accounting and sale of the finished goods in cash 

without payment of duty. Further from the records it is seen that about 

sixteen buyers [referred to in para 11.13 of the impugned order], who 

purchased the finished goods from the Appellants without payment of duty 

have also confirmed that they had received these goods without the cover 

of proper excise documentation and without payment of duty. Similarly, two 

scraps suppliers, Mr. Yunus Abmed Shaikh and Mr. Shaikh Mushtaq Gulab 

have also admitted that they have supplied the MS scrap which is the raw 

materials for the manufacture of these goods without the cover of 

documents and they have received consideration for sale of such scrap in 

cash. Considering these evidences available in record, we hold that the 

denial of cross-examination of the authors of the private records has not 

caused any prejudice to the Appellants. In fact none of the statements 

recorded have been retracted or disputed. In such a scenario, when the 

fact is not disputed, cross-examination of the party is not necessary. The 

Hon'ble Apex Court in the case of Kanungo Company - 1983 (13) EL. T.  

1486  (S.C.) and the Hon'ble High Court of Andhra Pradesh in the case of 

Shalini Steels Pvt. Ltd. [supra] have held that there is no absolute right for 

cross examination and if sufficient corroborative evidences exist, cross-

examination of the deponent of the statement is not necessary. In view of 

the above we hold that the denial of cross-examination of Shri Thorve and 
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Shri Ashok Kumar Yadav who maintained the private records has not 

caused any prejudice to the Appellants." 

From the above conclusions, we are also of the view that this was not a case 

which required cross-examination. The Directors themselves admitted the guilt. 

So, almost all allegations stood proved.  

8.9 I also find that the Hon'ble High Court of Andhra Pradesh, 

in the case of M/s. Shalini Steel P Ltd reported as 2011 (258) E.L.T. 

545 (Tn. - Bang.) has held that evidentiary value of the documents 

could not be lost in absence of cross examination of an employee. 

"11. In the case on hand the statement of Sri Gm Prakash Sharma was 
relied upon, by the Commissioner of Customs and Central Excise, in 
demanding payment of excise duty by, and in levying penalty on, the 
appellant. The statement of Sri Om Prakash Sharma, who was an  
employee of the Appellant company, was accepted to be true by none other 
than the Manaqinq Director of the Appellant company. It is evident,  
therefore, that no prejudice was caused to the appellant on their being  
denied the opportunity of cross-examining Sri Om Prakash Sharma when  
its Managing Director had himself accepted the said statement to be true. 
Even otherwise nothing prevented the Appellant company, if they so chose, 
from producing Sri Om Prakash Sharma, (who was their employee), as a 
witness in their defence and to examine him on their behalf. It is evident, 
therefore, that this plea of denial of opportunity to cross-examine Sri Om 
Prakash Sharma is an afterthought, and was raised only to wriggle out of 
the demand of excise duty and the penalty levied on them." 

(Emphasis supplied) 

9. I find that Order Status Forms were seized from the factory 

and the Affidavits filed by Appellant No.2 and other director of the 

company also state that these documents were seized from their 

factory premises and hence Order Status Forms seized from the 

factory is not in dispute. I find that all details of Order Status Forms 

were explained by Appellant No.2, Loading Supervisor and Billing 

Clerk of the Appellant No.1 in various statements recorded during the 

investigation, which revealed the modus operandi adopted by 

Appellant No.1 with active help of Appellant No.2. Appellant No.2 

explained that details of finished goods i.e. wall tiles including MRP, 

Page 38 of49 



Appeal No: V2/253 to 256/RAJ/2017 

39 

design, grade and also details of vehicle number, name of the buyers 

were recorded in the said form and goods were loaded in the vehicles 

mentioned therein. I find that loading supervisor has also confirmed 

that loading of tiles was done as per these forms and hence 

manufacture of tiles and clearance/dispatch of manufactured Tiles are 

established. I also find that demand was made by comparing the order 

status form with that of Invoices recorded in the books of account of 

Appellant No.1, which further established that the finished goods 

mentioned in the said Order Status forms were being billed by 

Appellant No.1 and all such Order Status forms were their own 

documents for the purpose of representing actual clearances. I further 

find that all Order Status forms were found from the Loading Section of 

factory of Appellant No.1 and were kept in files and were part of the 

records of the manufacturing unit. I find that Appellant No.2 confessed 

during the course of recording of Panchnama, after perusal of these 

records in presence of Panchas that these Order Status forms contain 

details of clearances made with invoices and without invoices and also 

in subsequent statements that clearance without payment of Central 

Excise duty was effected where invoices were not issued against the 

clearances made as per Order Status forms. I find that amount and 

work sheet of missing invoices were prepared during Panchnama 

proceedings and hence working of clandestine clearances were 

arrived at by due process prescribed under the law. I therefore, hold 

that order status forms seized under Panchnama proceedings and 

relied upon for quantification of duty liability are proper, fair and 

justified. 

9.1 I find that the content of above "order status forms" are 

accepted before Panchas and well explained by the creator inasmuch 

as the loading supervisor has categorially explained the pre-printed 

details i.e. Name of the buyer, date, design, grade , quantity of tiles 

being cleared etc. He also explained hand written details of vehicle 
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number, price received by him, and identified his own hand written 

details of Box loaded, Driver's Mobile number and finally deposed that 

it also contained actual number of boxes dispatched in the vehicle. 

Appellant No.2 also explained modus operandi adopted by Appellant 

No.1, which confirmed that details of dispatch and clearances in this 

pattern cannot be dictated by any person in an imaginary way. I further 

find that in statement dated 20.08.2015, Appellant No.2 also explained 

that worksheet was prepared comparing Invoice Vis-à-vis Order Status 

forms and details were included in respect of clearances made under 

invoices. Therefore, I am of the considered view that the facts 

explained and deposed by Appellant No. 2 in his statements have to 

be granted due evidentiary value. Therefore, so called arguments of 

statement under threat are not genuine and are in fact bald 

submissions to wriggle out of duty lability only. 

9.2 I find that Appellant No.2 in his statement dated 

19.11.2015 i.e. even after registering affidavit on 28.08.2015, has 

given names and details of customers, to whom they had sold wall 

tiles along with address and Mobile number of the persons to whom 

Appellant No.1 has sold the wall tiles. The statements of two buyers 

out of many named by Appellant No.2 were recorded during 

investigation, perused and correctness of the content under his 

statement dated 25.04.2016. Therefore, it is not the case that the 

statements were taken behind the back of Appellant No.1. Therefore, 

challenging these statements after issuance of Show Cause Notice is 

nothing but afterthought to contest the matter to get out of duty liability. 

Statements of Loading supervisor, Billing Clerk and Marketing 

Manager, relied upon by the department establish the methodology 

adopted by Appellant No.1 and they give sufficient evidences about 

the modus operandi adopted by Appellant No.1 and executed by 

Appellant No.2. I find that the said statements were perused by 

Appellant No.2 and correctness of the statements was accepted by 
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Appellant No.2. 

9.3 The statements of Appellant No.2 explaining records, modus 

operandi and identification of records duly recorded in Panchnama 

proceedings dated 20.08.2015 are the facts on record and establish 

charges made in the SON and proved in the impugned order. The 

confessional statements along with corroborative facts available in the 

case are credible, voluntary and hence, admissible as has been held 

in the below cases: 

(a) MIs. Radhika Steel Industries Ws CCE Chandigardh (2014 (306) E.L. T. 169 

(P & H) 

"7. Having heard learned counsel for the assessee-Appellant at length we are of the 

considered view that the instant appeal is devoid of any merit and does not warrant 
interference of this Court. There is no legal infirmity in the order passed by the Tribunal. 

There are cogent and justifiable reasons assigned by the Tribunal in negating the retracted 

statement offered by proprietor of the assessee-Appellant. Even the learned counsel has not 

been able to point out anything from the record that the alleged labourers were ever 

produced for examination in support of the retracted statement. The case of the Revenue is 
well supported that there was excess of 31.331 MTs of finished goods, which were not 

accounted for in the records maintained by the assessee-Appellant. The Tribunal has rightly 

held that the assessee-Appellant was aware of the fact that the raw material of the goods in 

question was purchased from the gray market and the same was not accounted for. Had 
there been no detection, the finished goods would have been certainly cleared without 

payment of duty and without issuance of any invoice. The retraction is nothing but to create a 
false plea of defence only. Thus, the redemption fine and penalty has been rightly imposed. 

The appeal does not warrant admission". 

(b) MIs. Surei Engg. Works Ws CCE, New Delhi- 2004 (167) ELT 195 (Tn. Del.): 

"It is well settled that admission made by the maker can be accepted as a substantial piece 

of evidence under the law. He cannot be later on, permitted to turn round and deny that his 
admission was not voluntary, unless he is able to establish that the admission was extracted 

from him under coercion, duress, threat, etc. This being the position in law, in my view, the 

admission made by Shri Aaloke Surie, the proprietor of the Appellant's firm which he never 
retracted by alleging to had been taken out from him, by beating, coercion, provided 

substantial piece of evidence for proving the allegations against him, as contained, in the 
SCN. He even deposited the duty amount without any protest. Therefore, the non-

preparation of the Panchnama and joining of the independent witnesses, under these 

circumstances, has got no bearing on the merit of the case." 

9.4 I am also of the view that admitted facts need not be 

proved as has been held by CESTAT in the cases of Alex Industries 

reported as 2008 (230) ELT 0073 (Tri-Mumbai), M/s. Divine Solutions 
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reported as 2006 (206) E.L.T. 1005 (Tn. (Chennai) that Confessional 

statements would hold the field and there is no need to search for 

evidences in this case. Hon'ble CESTAT in the case of M/s. Karori 

Engg. Works reported as 2004 (166) E.L.T. 373 (Tn. Del.) has also 

held that Admission/Confession is a substantial piece of evidence, 

which can be used against the maker. Therefore, Appellant's reliance 

on various case laws relating to corroborative evidences and 

establishing clandestine removal cannot be made applicable in view of 

the positive and overwhelming evidences available in this case as 

discussed above and as discussed in the findings of the impugned 

order. 

9.5 I am also of the view that there is existence of ingredients 

substantiating manipulation and deception on part of Appellant No.1 in 

this case. It is settled legal position that in cases of clandestine 

removal, the department is not required to prove the same with 

mathematical precision as has been held by the Hon'ble Apex Court in 

the cases of Aafloat Textiles (India) Pvt. Ltd. reported as 2009 (235) 

ELT 587 (SC), and Shah Guman Mal reported as 1983 (13) E.L.T. 

1546 (S.C.). 

9.6 The Hon'ble CESTAT in the case of M/s. Surya Cotspin 

Ltd reported as 2015 (328) ELT 650 (Tn-Del) has held that it is 

established principle of law that fraud and justice are sworn enemies 

as under: 

"15. Evidence gathered by Revenue unambiguously proved that the dealer 
respondents officers were conduit to cause evasion of Customs duty engineered 
by Respondent manufacturer. It is established principle of law that fraud and 
justice are sworn enemies. Therefore, revenue deserves consideration and it 
should be allowed to arrest fraud. 

16. It is settled law that Revenue need not prove its case with mathematical 
precision. Once the evidence gathered by investigation brings out preponderance 
of probability and nexus between the modus operandi of the respondent with the 
goods it dealt, and movement of goods from origin to destination is possible to be 
comprehended, it cannot be ruled out that circumstantial evidence equally play a 
role. In the present case, it is not only the photocopy that was used against the 
respondents, there are other credible and cogent documentary evidence, 

Page 42 of 49 



Appeal No: V21253 to 256/RAJ/2017 

43 

circumstantial evidence including oral evidence as well as expert's report went 
against the respondents for which stand of Revenue cannot be criticized. The best 
evidence when demonstrate the modus operandi beginning from finding of 
unaccounted goods in the factory till parking of clandestinely removed goods and 
also throw light on the intention behind suppression of production which was 
established and corroborated by recording of higher quantity after search, the 
respondents made futile exercise in their defence. 

17. Apart from the photocopies of the invoices the other evidences gathered by 
investigation were not inferior at all. That directly brought out nexus of the 
respondent to the evasion committed. When the respondent failed to rebut on 
other evidence adduced by investiqation, those equally became vital to appreciate 
the case of Revenue.  

(Emphasis supplied) 

9.7 Appellant has contested the production capacity of the unit 

and examination of only 10% of the buyers. I find that adjudicating 

authority at Para 36.18 and 36.24 has also discussed and held that 

appellants were using Gasifier Plant and presumptive quantification 

can not be done. I find that Appellant No.2 in his statement dated 

20.08.2015 in answer to Question No.20 deposed that they had 

purchased the basic raw material "Clay" without Bills to be used for 

clandestine manufacture of their finished goods. I also find that 

production register was seized during the search and authenticity of 

hand written figures by the Production supervisor explaining precise 

details were accepted by the author of that register. I further find that 

Production Supervisor has stated that 90 to 95% tiles of premium 

grade were manufactured in the unit. Similarly, during the course of 

Panchnama it was stated by Appellant No.2 that invoices were raised 

lowering down grade of tiles and they paid lesser excise duty by down 

grading actual grade! quantity of wall tiles. All these evidences go 

against Appellant's argument with regard to production and differential 

duty confirmed in the impugned order. I find that the Hon'ble CESTAT 

in the case of M/s. N R Sponge P Ltd reported as 2015 (328) ELT 453 

(Tn-Del) has held that when preponderance of probability was against 

the Appellant, then pleas of no statements recorded from all buyers, 

no raw material purchase found unaccounted and no input-output ratio 

prescribed by law are of no use. The relevant portion of the order is 

reproduced below:- 
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"10.1 Recovety of the loose sheets and pencil written ledger from the premises 
of the Appellant in the course of search proved the entries therein as 
representative of the clandestinely removed goods which were well within the 
knowledge of the Appellant. Active involvement of Appellant in that regard came to 

record since those materials were in the custody of the Appellant. It is common 

sense that the materials having utility to the possessor thereof are only possessed 
by him. He proves ownership thereof and is answerable to the contents therein. 
Entries on such incriminating materials demonstrated clandestine clearance of 
562.130 MT of Sponge Iron and 887.560 MT of such goods respectively well 
explained by Appellant. That also proved clandestine removal of 81.010 MT of 

Dolochar by the Appellant. Such removals were further proved from the records 

seized from the transporters MIs. Purwanchal Road Carriers and MIs. Giriraj 

Roadlines. The materials recovered from transporters brought out the evidence of 
clandestine removal of 69.180 MT of Sponge Iron and 55.855 MT of such goods 
respectively. Those clearances were not substantiated by Excise invoices. When 
certain entries in the pencil handwritten ledger matched with the Central Excise 

invoices and other entries did not match, the unmatched entries, became 

testimony of clandestine removals not supported by invoices. Accordingly, such 

clearances became subject-matter of allegation in respect of removal of 887.560 

MT of Sponge Iron without payment of Excise duty. Similarly, the loose sheets 

when evaluated, that proved removal of excisable goods without payment of duty 
to the extent of aforesaid quantity of goods. 

10.2 The statement recorded from shift supetvisors beinq self-speakinq cannot 
be brushed aside because they were the persons within whose knowledqe qoods 
were manufactured and cleared. Their evidence was believable, coqent and 
credible for the reason that they vividly described methodoloqy of production.  

10.3 Added to the above, the director admitted clandestine removal of the qoods 

not supported by Excise invoices. That resulted in loss of revenue. He therefore,  
admitted to make payment of the duty evaded without controverting the Revenue 

implication of the entries in pencil handwritten ledger and chits recovered from 

possession of Appellant during search. Entire pleading of the Appellant therefore, 

failed to sustain when mala fide of the Appellant came to record. Clandestine 
removal was well within the knowledge of the shift supervisors, accountant, 
Director, transporters and commission agent. Each other's evidence corroborated 
all of them and established unaccounted goods cleared without payment of duty. 

The most lively evidence of Kailash Agarwal brought the Appellant-company to the 
root of allegation. All of them established inextricable link of evasion. Shri Agarwal 
by his evidence attached all the persons involved in the chain of clandestine 
clearance without their detachment. 

10.4 Preponderance of probability was aqainst the Appellant. Pleadinq of no 
statement recorded from buyer, no excess electricity consumption found, no raw 
material purchase found unaccounted and no input-output ratio prescribed by law 
is of no use to it. Revenue discharqed its onus of proof brinqinq out the al/eqation  
in the show cause notice succinctly. But, the Appellant miserably failed to 
discharqe its burden of proof. It did not come out with clean hands. 

10.5 It is not only one evidence, but multiple echoed evidence demonstrated 
oblique motive of the Appellant and proved its mala fide. Therefore, Appellant fails 
on all counts. Revenue's investigating was successful and its suffering was 
established. 

(Emphasis supplied) 

9.8 I find that AppellantNo.1 is attempting to unprove now in 

Appeal, what have already been proved during investigation and an 
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impression is being created that facts revealed by good investigation 

were all fabricated but Appellant No.1 did not succeed due to 

overwhelming evidences available in this case against them. Thus, in 

absence of any evidence favouring Appellant No.1, I have no option 

but to hold that duty liability as confirmed in the impugned order is 

correct, legal and proper. 

9.9 The liability of interest is natural legal consequence of duty 

liability and hence interest as ordered in the impugned order is upheld 

and Appellant No.1 should pay interest forthwith. 

9.10 In view of the evidences available in the case and 

discussed above and in the impugned order, I find that equal penalty 

has to be imposed under Rule 25 of the Rules read with Section 1 lAO 

of the Act in cases like this where goods have been manufactured, not 

accounted for and cleared without payment of duty. Therefore, I hold 

equal mandatory penalty on Appellant No.1 is imposable as per 

Section 1 1AC (1) (c) of the Act read with Rule 25 of the Rules which is 

legal and proper. 

10. Appellant No.2 has preferred appeal on the ground that he 

was not aware about so called confessions recorded in his statements 

and relied upon affidavit wherein he affirmed that officers had created 

hostile atmosphere; that three statements were recorded in English 

and he was not aware of the contents of those statements. As already 

held in forgoing paras while discussing the argument of Appellant No.1 

that affidavits were not filed before the investigating officers and was 

mere a record created at his own end. Also, all three statements 

recorded in English were in presence of an individual known to 

Appellant No.2 and on all three occasions when statements of 

Appellant No.2 were recorded 3 different individual known to Appellant 

No.2 were present. I also find that Appellant No.2 has signed each and 
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every document in English and not in Gujarati. All three individuals 

known to Appellant No.2 also put their signature in English only. 

Therefore, I do not find merit in Appellant No.2's argument that he was 

not concerned with the goods liable for confiscation. I find that the 

appellant being active and responsible Director of Appellant No.1 was 

fully aware of the fact that the goods manufactured in the unit were not 

being accounted for properly and being cleared without central excise 

invoice and without payment of duty and hence actively involved in 

evasion of central excise duty being done. Thus, he is the person 

concerned in dealing with such excisable goods and had every reason 

to believe that the goods were liable to confiscation. I find that 

Appellant No.2 was actively involved in large scale duty evasion and 

that adjudicating authority has imposed penalty of Rs.44 lakhs upon 

Appellant No.2 for confirmed duty demand of Rs.1.75 Crores. I, 

therefore, find no infirmity in the impugned order imposing penalty of 

Rs.44 Lakhs upon Appellant No.2 and hence I uphold the order and 

reject the Appeal. 

10.1 Appellant No.3 and Appellant No. 4 have contested imposition of 

penalty under Rule 26 of the Rules on the ground that they were not 

aware of the contents of the statements recorded by the officers. I find 

that statements of both the appellants were in question answer form 

and also included a detailed work sheet showing date wise information 

of finished goods purchased by them. The appellants have put their 

signature in English with their own name and name of the firm in 

English in their own hand writing!! Therefore, I find no merit that they 

were unaware about the contents of the statements and worksheets. 

In light of the above facts, the imposition of penalty on Appellant No. 3 

and Appellant No.4 under Rule 26 of the Rules, is justified, legal and 

proper, I therefore uphold penalty of Rs.1,50,000/- and Rs.66,000/-

imposed upon Appellant No. 3 & Appellant No.4 respectively and 

reject their appeals also. 
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ii. In view of above discussion and findings, I reject the 

appeals filed by all 4 Appellants and uphold the impugned order. 
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12. The appeals filed by the Appellants stand disposed off in 

above terms. 
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Copy to:- 
1) The Chief Commissioner, GST & Central Excise, Ahmedabad Zone 

Ahmedabad for his kind information. 
2) The Commissioner, GST & Central Excise, Rajkot Commissionerate, 

Rajkot. 
3) The Assistant Commissioner, GST & Central Excise Division-Il, Rajkot. 

Guard File. 

5) F No. V2/254 /RAJ/2017 

6) F No. V2/255/RAJ/2017 

7) F No. V2/256/RAJ/2017 
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